






























Draft Motions for Articles 11, 12, 13, 14 and 15  
For Review Prior To and Discussion At 

Board of Selectmen’s Meeting Of October 21, 2014 
 

Motion For Article 11 

 Move that the Town vote to appropriate Thirty Thousand Dollars ($30,000) to initiate and 

operate a commercial storefront, facade, sign, window and/or lighting improvement program in 

the Stoneham Square [add street boundaries for Stoneham Square] and to make grants and/or loans 

available for business property owners or business tenants in said area for such purposes.  Said 

funds to be transferred from Account _______________ [the operating budget for the Town 

Planner].  The funds to be granted and/or loaned in a program to be administered by the Town 

Planner under the supervision and direction of the Town Administrator, and in the event of a 

vacancy in the position of the town planner, by the Town Administrator or his/her designee.  

       

 BOARD OF SELECTMEN  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Motion For Article 12 

 Move that that the Town appoint a committee to assist the Board of Selectmen and the Town 

Administrator to establish, commence and operate by and through the Town or an entity designated 

by the Board of Selectmen, a farmers market in Stoneham.  This initial Committee shall remain in 

existence until December 31, 2016. Members shall be appointed to the Committee, as follows: 

(i) five members to be appointed by the Board of Selectmen; 

(ii) two members to be appointed by the Town Moderator; 

(iii) two members to be appointed by the Planning Board;  and 

(iv) two members to be appointed by the School Committee. 

 Any vacancy shall be filled by the same board, committee or official that made the initial 

appointment.   

 The committee shall prepare a report on its progress and the establishment and/or operation 

of the farmers market for the Annual Town Meeting in May 2015 and at the Fall Town Meeting 

in October, 2015.   

 And further move to appropriate the sum of Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500) 

to be used to establish, commence and operate the farmers market. Said sum to be transferred from 

Account_____________________ [the operating budget for the Town Planner].   

 

        BOARD OF SELECTMEN 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Motion For Article 13 

 Move that the subject matter of Article 13 be indefinitely postponed.   

       BOARD OF SELECTMEN 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Motion For Article 14 

 Move that the Town vote to petition the General Court (State Legislature) for a special act 

amending Chapter 167 of the Acts of 2001 by adding the following phrase at the end of Section 1 

“except section 17 thereof, and any license issued hereunder, regardless of when issued, shall not 

count toward the number of licenses for which a limit is set out in said Section 17  ”, so that the 

Act, as amended, reads as follows:   

Notwithstanding any general or special law to the contrary, the licensing authority of 

the town of Stoneham may grant licenses for the sale of all alcoholic beverages to be 

drunk on the premises or licenses for the sale of wines and malt beverages to be drunk 

on the premises in theaters with seating capacities of 300 or more. A license, if issued, 

shall be subject to chapter 138 of the General Laws, except section 17 thereof, and any 

license issued hereunder, regardless of when issued, shall not count toward the number 

of licenses for which a limit is set out in said Section 17 of chapter 138.       

 And further to provide that this Act shall take effect upon passage.   

 The Board of Selectmen is hereby authorized to take any action needed with respect to the 

petition being submitted to and approved by the General Court.   

        BOARD OF SELECTMEN 

 

 



 

 

 

Motion For Article 15 

 
 Move that the Town vote to re-establish by bylaw the Water and Sewer Review Board, by 

adding to Chapter 2 of the Stoneham Town Code, as Section 2-37.4 “Water and Sewer Review 

Board” as follows: 

(a)  There is hereby established a Water and Sewer Review Board to assist the Town 

Administrator, as follows:  

(i)   To hear water and sewer billing disputes and to render to any petitioner a binding 

decision as to the remedies, if any, in the dispute; 

(ii)   Review the costs and assessments associated with the operation, maintenance 

and capital requirements of the water and sewer systems;  

(iii)  Hold an annual public hearing at least forty-five (45) days prior to the Annual 

Town Meeting to receive public input on the water and sewer and rates for the 

next fiscal year and any other information as may be requested concerning the 

water and sewer system and its operation; and 

(iv)    Make recommendations to the Town Administrator prior to the establishment 

of water and sewer assessments/rates and prior to the Annual Town Meeting so 

as to further the goal of assessments/rates which are just and equitable and in 

proportion to the benefits of users. 

(b)  The Water and Sewer Review Board shall consist of seven (7) members, which shall, 

at its inception, consist of all current regular and non-voting members of the Board as it exists 

prior to its re-establishment by bylaw pursuant hereto, who will, if they so desire, complete their 

respective terms.  Subsequent appointments shall be made as follows:   

(i) Two (2) members shall be appointed for three (3) year terms beginning May 1, 

2015, with one appointment by the Board of Selectmen and one appointment by 

the Finance and Advisory Board; 



(ii) Two (2) members shall be appointed for three (3) year terms beginning May 1, 

2016, with appointment by the Board of Selectmen and one appointment by the 

Finance and Advisory Board; and 

(iii) Three (3) members shall be appointed for three (3) year terms beginning May 1, 

2016, with two appointments by the Board of Selectmen and one appointment by 

the Finance and Advisory Board. 

 No member of the Stoneham Department of Public Works shall be appointed to or shall 

otherwise continue to serve as a member of the Water and Sewer Review Board. 

 All subsequent appointments shall also be for three (3) year terms and shall be made by the 

board which had made the earlier appointment. 

(c) Vacancies shall be filled by the same board which made the earlier appointment and 

such appointments shall be for the unexpired term of the member. 

        BOARD OF SELECTMEN  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Motion For Article 16 

 [Will be separately forwarded with draft mobile food truck/vehicles/cart/vendor 

Regulations.] 

       BOARD OF SELECTMEN  

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 1 

WARRANT FOR SPECIAL TOWN MEETING 

MONDAY, OCTOBER 27, 2014 

 

To either of the Constables of the Town of Stoneham in the County of Middlesex,       Greeting: 

 In the name of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, you are directed to notify and warn the 

inhabitants of the Town of Stoneham qualified to vote in elections and Town affairs to meet in the Town 

Hall, 35 Central Street, on 

Monday, October 27, 2014 

at 7:00 o’clock in the evening to act upon the following articles of this Warrant: 

 

 Article 1. To see if the Town will vote to amend the Stoneham Town Code, Chapter 15, 

Zoning By-law: 

 

1.)  by amending the Zoning Map of the Town of Stoneham to add to the Residence B District the 

following described property at 42 Pleasant Street: 

 

Beginning at a point on the Northerly side of Pleasant Street being the Southwesterly lot corner of the 

subject property; thence 

 

N 24º41'00" E  Thirty-three and 00/100 (33.00) feet; thence 

 

N 61º44'00" W Thirty and 64/100 (30.64) feet; thence 

 

N 13º03'10" E  Three Hundred Forty and 42/100 (340.42) feet; thence 

 

N 17º52'10" E  Sixteen and 00/100 (16.00) feet; thence 

 

S 76º07'55" E  Eighty-three and 39/100 (83.39) feet; thence 

 

S 86º53'47" E  Eighty-nine and 75/100 (89.75) feet; thence 

 

by a curve with a radius of One thousand, One hundred Twenty-five and 23/100 (1,125.23) feet and an arc 

length of One hundred Twenty-one and 17/100 (121.17) feet; thence  

 

S 12º53'45" W  Two Hundred Seventy-five and 09/100 (275.09) feet; thence 

 

N 52º21'50" W Fifty-three and 82/100 (53.82) feet; thence 

 

S 37º38'10" W  Eighty-six and 18/100 (86.18) feet; thence 

 

N 52º21'50"W  Ninety-four and 84/100 (94.84) feet along Pleasant Street to the Point of Beginning 



 2 

The above described property contains 75,891 square feet of land, and   

 

2.)  by amending Section 4.3.3.1(h) to read as follows:  Section 4.3.3.1(h) If there is more than one (1) 

such structure on a lot of record, there shall be at least sixty (60) feet between each structure except for 

town houses where there shall be at least forty-five (45) feet between each structure.  The only exception 

may be that no more than three (3) buildings may each be interconnected by a covered walkway or 

breezeway for reasons of convenience and shelter from the elements, if such walkway, in the opinion of 

the Planning Board and the Board of Selectmen, shall not impair services to the buildings by emergency 

vehicles or equipment.  Such buildings so interconnected shall be deemed as separate and individual 

buildings for the purposes of administering the Rules and Regulations Governing the Subdivision of Land 

for the Town of Stoneham. (5-1-95, Art. 11) and, 

 

3.) and by amending Section 5.2.1 Table One - Dimensional Requirements as attached: 

 

 
Charles F. Houghton 

15 Kimball Drive 



 3 

Article 2. To see if the Town will vote to accept a new utility easement on Fallon Road 

shown as proposed Utility Easement C on a plan entitled “Plan of Land Fallon Road Stoneham, Mass. 

dated September 10, 2014 drawn by Benchmark Survey more particularly described as follows:  

 

A certain parcel of land located on the southerly sideline of the off ramp on the southbound lane of Route 

93 at the intersection of Fallon Road situated in the Town of Stoneham, South Middlesex County, 

Commonwealth of Massachusetts, bounded and described as follows: 

 

Beginning at a point at the intersection of the westerly sideline of the MDC Access Road and the 

southerly sideline of the off ramp on the southbound lane of Route 93; said point being S 83° 26' 21" E 

along the southerly sideline of the off ramp on the southbound lane of Route 93 a distance of 39.05 feet 

from a stone bound/eplp; 

 

Thence running S 83° 26' 21" E along the southerly sideline of the ramp on the southbound lane of 

Route 93 a distance of 30.00 feet to a point at the westerly sideline of the MDC Access Road; 

 

Thence turning and running S 06° 33' 39" W a distance of 40.00 feet to a point; 

 

Thence turning and running N 83° 26' 21" W a distance of 30.00 feet to a point; 

 

Thence turning and running N 06° 33' 39" E a distance of 40.00 feet to the point of beginning on the 

southerly sideline of the off ramp on the southbound lane of Route 93; 

 

Containing an area of 1,200 square feet and shown as PROPOSED UTILITY EASEMENT “C” on a plan 

entitled “PLAN OF LAND FALLON ROAD STONEHAM MASS. SCALE 1”=20’ Dated SEPTEMBER 

10, 2014” by Benchmark Survey.   

 

The Town Administrator and Board of Selectmen are hereby authorized to take any action necessary to 

accept said Utility Easement “C”, or do anything in relation thereto.   

 

Board of Selectmen  

 

Article 3. To see if the Town will vote to abandon an existing easement shown as UTILITY 

EASEMENT A on a plan entitled “Plan of Land Fallon Road Stoneham, Mass. dated September 10, 

2014” shown by Benchmark Survey, more particularly bounded and described as follows:   

 

A certain parcel of land located on the westerly sideline of the MDC Access Road situated in the Town of 

Stoneham, Middlesex South County, Commonwealth of Massachusetts bounded and described as follows: 

 

Beginning at a point at the westerly sideline of the MDC Access Road, said point being N 27° 57' 00" W 

along the westerly sideline of the MDC Access Road a distance of 11.51 feet from a stone bound drill 

hole; 

 

Thence running S 23° 03' 00" W a distance of 7.37 feet to a point; 



 4 

 

Thence turning and running S 77° 50' 05" W a distance of 42.00 feet to a point; 

 

Thence turning and running S 12° 09' 55" E a distance of 32.00 feet to the southerly sideline of Old Fallon 

Road; 

 

Thence turning and running S 77° 50' 05" W along the southerly sideline of Old Fallon Road a distance of 

10.00 feet to a point; 

 

Thence turning and running N 12° 09' 55" W a distance of 32.00 feet to a point; 

 

Thence turning and running S 77° 50' 05" W a distance of 20.00 feet to a point; 

 

Thence turning and running N 12° 09' 55" W a distance of 10.00 feet to a point; 

 

Thence turning and running N 77° 50' 05" E a distance of 43.00 feet to a point; 

 

Thence turning and running N 23° 03' 00" E a distance of 39.78 feet to the westerly sideline of the MDC 

Access Road; 

 

Thence running S 27° 57' 00" E along the westerly sideline of the MDC Access Road a distance of 37.91 

to the point of beginning;  

 

Containing an area of 1,590 square feet and shown as UTILITY EASEMENT “A” on a plan entitled 

“PLAN OF LAND FALLON RAOD STONEHAM, MASS. SCALE 1”=20’ Dated SEPTEMBER 10, 

2014” by Benchmark Survey. 

 

Said Utility Easement “A” being no longer needed for the purpose for which it was intended.  The Town 

Administrator and Board of Selectmen are hereby authorized to take any action necessary to declare said 

Easement abandoned, or do anything in relation thereto.  

 

Board of Selectmen  

 

 Article 4. To see if the Town will vote to abandon an existing easement shown as UTILITY 

EASEMENT B on a plan entitled “Plan of Land Fallon Road Stoneham, Mass. dated September 10, 

2014” shown by Benchmark Survey, more particularly bounded and described as follows:   

 

A certain parcel of land located on the westerly sideline of the MDC Access Road situated in the Town of 

Stoneham, Middlesex South County, Commonwealth of Massachusetts bounded and described as follows: 

 

Beginning at a point at the westerly sideline of the MDC Access Road, said point being S 27° 57' 00" E 

along the westerly sideline of the MDC Access Road a distance of 122.44 feet from the intersection with 

the off ramp to the southbound lane of Route 93; 

 



 5 

Thence running S 27° 57' 00" E along the westerly sideline of the MDC Access Road a distance of 13.16 

feet to a point; 

 

Thence turning and running S 36° 12' 51" W a distance of 33.63 feet to a point; 

 

Thence turning and running N 12° 09' 55" W a distance of 35.00 feet to a stone bound drill hole; 

 

Thence turning and running N 77° 50' 05" E to the westerly sideline of the MDC Access Road a distance 

of 21.56 feet to the point of beginning.   

 

Containing an area of 576 square feet and shown as UTILITY EASEMENT “B” on a plan entitled 

“PLAN OF LAND FALLON RAOD STONEHAM, MASS. SCALE 1”=20’ Dated SEPTEMBER 10, 

2014” by Benchmark Survey.   

 

Said Utility Easement “B” being no longer needed for the purpose for which it was intended.  The Town 

Administrator and Board of Selectmen are hereby authorized to take any action necessary to declare said 

Easement abandoned, or do anything in relation thereto.  

 

Board of Selectmen  

 

Article 5. To see if the Town will vote to authorize the transfer of the care, custody, 

management and control of a parcel of land to the Board of Selectmen for the purpose of the sale of said 

land.  Said parcel of land is shown as Lot D on a plan entitled “Plan of Land Fallon Road Stoneham, 

Mass. dated September 10, 2014” drawn by Benchmark Survey and more particularly described as 

follows: 

 

A certain parcel of land located on the westerly sideline of the MDC Access Road situated in the Town of 

Stoneham, Middlesex South County, Commonwealth of Massachusetts bounded and described as follows: 

 

Beginning at a stone bound drill hole at the westerly sideline of the MDC Access Road; said point being S 

27° 57' 00" E a distance of 94.44 feet from the intersection of the southbound lane off ramp to Route 93 

and the westerly sideline of the MDC Access Road; 

 

Thence running S 27° 57' 00" E along the westerly sideline of the MDC Access Road a distance of 28.00 

feet to a point; 

 

Thence turning and running S 77° 50' 05" W a distance of 21.56 feet to a stone bound drill hole; 

 

Thence turning and running S 12° 09' 55" E a distance of 40.00 feet to a stone bound drill hole; 

 

Thence turning and running S 77° 50' 05" W a distance of 30.00 feet to a stone bound drill hole; 

 

Thence turning and running N 12° 09' 55" W to the southerly sideline of Old Fallon Road a distance of 

40.00 feet to a stone bound drill hole; 



 6 

 

Thence running N 46° 19' 15" E along the southerly sideline of Old Fallon Road a distance of 51.55 to the 

point of beginning. 

 

Containing an area of 1,895 square feet and shown as LOT “D” on a plan entitled “PLAN OF LAND 

FALLON ROAD STONEHAM, MASS. SCALE 1”=20’ Dated SEPTEMBER 10, 2014” by Benchmark 

Survey.   

 

Said LOT “D” being no longer needed for the purpose for which it was intended.  The Town 

Administrator and Board of Selectmen are hereby authorized to take any action necessary to sell said Lot 

D, or do anything in relation thereto.   

 

Board of Selectmen  

 

Article 6. To see if the Town will authorize the Board of Selectmen to accept as a gift from 

Jeff Cataldo, Trustee of 105 Central Street Condominium Trust, the land shown as Lot B on a plan 

entitled "Plan of Land of 105 Central Street in Stoneham, Massachusetts,” prepared by P.J.F. and 

Associates dated September 8, 2014 more particularly described as follows:  

 

Beginning at a point five hundred thirty and thirty-nine hundredths (530.39) feet from the easterly side of 

Central street thence; 

 

S 85° 32' 31" E a distance of one hundred twenty-eight and seventy-seven hundredths (128.77) feet by 

land now or formerly of the Town of Stoneham thence;  

 

N 51° 46' 54" W a distance of seventeen and ninety-nine hundredths (17.99) feet by Railroad Way thence;  

 

By a curve to the left with a radius of nine hundred seventy-five and twenty- one hundredths (975.21) feet 

with a length of one hundred six and fifty hundredths (106.50) feet by Railroad Way thence;  

 

By Lot A as shown on said plan by a non tangent curve to the right with a radius of thirty nine and zero 

hundredths (39.00) feet with a length of eighty and sixty-five hundredths (80.65) feet to the point of 

beginning. 

 

Said Lot B contains an area of 3,342 square feet according to said plan.  

 

The Town Administrator and Board of Selectmen are hereby authorized to take any action necessary to 

accept a gift of the above described Lot B, or do anything in relation thereto.  

  

School Committee  

 

 Article 7. To see if the Town will authorize the Board of Selectmen to accept as a gift from 

Jeff Cataldo, Trustee of 105 Central Street Condominium Trust, a sewer easement shown on a plan 



 7 

entitled “Plan of Land of 105 Central Street in Stoneham, Massachusetts,” prepared by P.J.F. and 

Associates dated September 8, 2014, more particularly bounded and described as follows: 

 

Beginning at a point five hundred twelve and fifteen hundredths (512.15) feet from the easterly side of 

Central Street thence; 

 

S 85° 32' 31" E a distance of thirteen and eleven hundredths (13.11) feet by land now or formerly the 

Town of Stoneham thence; 

 

N 35° 49' 36" W a distance of thirteen and eleven hundredths (13.11) feet thence; 

 

N 85° 32' 31" W a distance of thirteen and eleven hundredths (13.11) feet thence; 

 

S 35° 49' 36" E a distance of thirteen and eleven hundredths (13.11) feet to the point of beginning.   

 

The Town Administrator and Board of Selectmen are hereby authorized to take any action necessary to 

accept a gift of the above described sewer easement.  

  

School Committee  

 

 Article 8.   To see if the Town will vote to abandon an existing easement on the property at 

105 Central Street, Stoneham, Massachusetts filed at the Middlesex South Registry of Deeds, Registered 

Land Section as Document # 1129117 and shown on a plan entitled “Easement Abandonment Plan of 

103-105 Central Street in Stoneham, Massachusetts,” prepared by P.J.F. and Associates dated September 

8, 2014 more particularly described as follows:  

 

Beginning at a point on the Easterly side of Central Street thence; 

 

S 85º 40' 52" E a distance of two hundred forty-eight and fifty-seven hundredths (248.57) thence; 

 

By a curve to the left with a radius of ninety-six and seventy-five hundredths (96.75) feet a distance of 

thirteen and ninety hundredths (13.90) feet thence;  

 

N 86º 05' 14" E a distance of twenty-five and fifty-eight hundredths (25.58) feet thence;  

 

By a curve to the right with a radius of fifty-three and twenty-five hundredths (53.25) feet a distance of 

seven and sixty-five hundredths (7.65) feet thence;  

 

S 85º 40' 52" E a distance of two hundred twenty one and thirty one hundredths (221.31) feet thence;  

 

N 04º 19' 08" E a distance of fifteen and zero hundredths (15.00) feet thence;  

 

S 85º 40' 52" E a distance of eighteen and zero hundredths (18.00) feet thence;  

 



 8 

N 04º 19' 08" E a distance of forty-two and fifty-four hundredths (42.54) feet thence;  

 

By a curve to the right with a radius of nine hundred seventy-five and twenty-one hundredths (975.21) 

feet by Railroad Way one hundred twenty-four and sixty-seven hundredths (124.67) feet thence;  

 

S 51º 46' 54" E a distance of seventeen and ninety-nine hundredths (17.99) feet by Railroad Way thence;  

 

N 85º 32' 31" W a distance of six hundred fifty-nine and sixteen hundredths (659.16) feet by land now or 

formerly the Town of Stoneham thence;  

 

N 14º 31' 29" W a distance of seven and fifty-eight hundredths (7.58) feet to the point of beginning.  

    

Said easement being no longer needed for the purpose for which it was intended. The Town Administrator 

and Board of Selectmen are hereby authorized to take any action necessary to declare said easement 

abandoned, or do anything in relation thereto. 

 

School Committee 

 

 Article 9. To see if the Town will vote to abandon an existing Right of Way Easement over 

the property at 105 Central Street, Stoneham, MA recorded at Middlesex South District Registry of 

Deeds at Book 5302, Page 98 and shown as Right of Way Easement on a plan entitled, “Easement 

Abandonment Plan of 103-105 Central Street in Stoneham, Massachusetts,” prepared by P.J.F. 

Associates dated September 8, 2014, more particularly described as follows:  

 

Beginning at a point on the Easterly side of Central Street thence; 

 

S 85° 32' 31" E a distance of six hundred fifty-nine and sixteen hundredths (659.16) feet by land now or 

formerly the Town of Stoneham thence; 

 

N 51° 46' 54" W a distance of seventeen and ninety-nine hundredths (17.99) feet by Railroad Way 

thence; 

 

N 85° 32' 31" W a distance of six hundred forty-two and forty-two hundredths (642.42) feet thence; 

 

S 14° 31' 29" W a distance of ten and sixteen hundredths (10.16) feet by Central Street to the point of 

beginning.   

 

Said Right of Way Easement being no longer needed for the purposes for which it was intended.  The 

Town Administrator and Board of Selectmen are hereby authorized to take any action necessary to 

declare said Easement abandoned, or do anything in relation hereto. 

  

School Committee  

 



 9 

 Article 10. To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Board of Selectmen to acquire land 

parcels, permanent and temporary easements, and/or other rights in land for the purpose of obtaining a 

secure and public right of way in the general area of the former railroad right of way, formerly known as 

the Stoneham Branch Right of Way. This will allow for the construction and roadway safety 

improvements of the Tri-Community Bikeway/Greenway project along and in the area of said former 

railroad right of way running from the Woburn Town line to Dale Court at the far end of Recreation 

Park. Further that the Selectmen may acquire such rights in real property including these parcels, 

modification of these parcels, other required parcels, easements and/or other rights related thereto 

though any legal means, including purchase, gift and/or eminent domain. Further, to raise and 

appropriate; transfer from available funds, and/or borrow funds needed for such acquisitions and to 

defray any associated right of way or acquisition costs or expenses connected with this project. 

 

Preliminary plans prepared by Fay Spofford & Thorndike LLC and titled TOWN OF STONEHAM - 

TRI COMMUNITY GREENWAY PARCEL SUMMARY - DRAFT - SEPTEMBER 16, 2014 showing 

parcels which will or may be subject of acquisition by the Town as referenced above are available for 

public inspection and copying at the Stoneham Town Clerk’s office, Stoneham Town Hall, 35 Central 

Street, Stoneham, MA.  These plans may be updated as changes to the proposed plans are made prior to 

the Town Meeting by Fay Spofford & Thorndike LLC.  A summary listing of the proposed acquisitions 

will also be available for public inspection and copying at the Stoneham Town Clerk’s office, and 

similarly updated.  The preliminary plans and summary listing of parcels are provided for public 

information purposes and not as a limitation of the scope of authority set out in paragraph 1 of this 

article, or do anything in relation thereto. 

 

        Stoneham Bikeway/Greenway Committee 

 

Article 11. To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate from taxation or by transfer 

from available funds a sum not to exceed Thirty Thousand Dollars to initiate and operate a commercial 

storefront, facade, sign, window and/or lighting improvement program in all or certain areas of the Town 

to make grants and/or loans available for business property owners or business tenants for such purposes 

or purposes related thereto.  Said funds to be granted and/or loaned in a program to be administered by the 

Town Planner under the supervision and direction of the Town Administrator, or do anything in relation 

thereto. 

 

Board of Selectmen 

 

  Article 12.  To see if the Town will appoint a committee to assist the Board of Selectmen and 

the Town Administrator to establish, commence and operate by and through the Town or an entity 

designated by the Board of Selectmen, a farmers market.  The method and specifics of appointment of the 

Committee to be determined by the Town Meeting; and further vote to raise and appropriate from taxation 

or by transfer from available funds a sum Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars for any or all of these 

purposes, or do anything in relation thereto. 

 

         Board of Selectmen  



 10 

 Article 13. Move that the Town vote to petition the Massachusetts General Court (State 

Legislature) for a special act, notwithstanding any general or special law, including Section 17 of Chapter 

138 of the General Laws, authorizing the Town of Stoneham to grant up to six (6) additional licenses for 

the sale of all alcoholic beverages to be drunk on the premises.  Said petition may, if so voted by the 

Town Meeting, address the general location of one or more of the licenses which may apply for and be 

granted such license(s) pursuant thereto.  Said petition may also include such other requirement(s) 

regarding such licenses as Town Meeting may determine, including: requirements that the establishment 

also hold a common victualler license pursuant to M.G.L. c. 140, sec. 2; restricting the transfer of any 

such license once granted for a period of time from the date of its original issuance; and/or addressing the 

terms and conditions of a further grant of any such license in the event the license previously issued is 

cancelled, revoked or otherwise not in use.  

 

And further to provide that the Act shall take effect upon passage and to authorize the Board of Selectmen 

to take any action needed with respect to the petition being submitted to and approved by the General 

Court, or do anything in relation thereto. 

 

Board of Selectmen  

 

 Article 14. To see if the Town will vote to petition the General Court (State Legislature) for a 

special act amending Chapter 167 of the Acts of 2001 by adding the following phrase at the end of 

Section 1  “except Section 17 thereof”, so that the Act, as amended, reads as follows: 

  

Notwithstanding any general or special law to the contrary, the licensing authority of the town of 

Stoneham may grant licenses for the sale of all alcoholic beverages to be drunk on the premises or licenses 

for the sale of wines and malt beverages to be drunk on the premises in theaters with seating capacities of 

300 or more. A license, if issued, shall be subject to chapter 138 of the General Laws. The license shall be 

subject to all of said chapter 138, except section 17 thereof.  And further to provide that the Act shall take 

effect upon passage and to authorize the Board of Selectmen to take any action needed with respect to the 

petition being submitted to and approved by the General Court.   

 

The purpose of this warrant article and the subject petition is to remove the all alcoholic beverage license 

since granted to the Stoneham Theater (or in theory any other alcoholic license granted to such a theater) 

from counting toward the Section 17 limitation on the number of all alcoholic licenses for sale on the 

premises in the Town of Stoneham, or do anything in relation thereto. 

 

Board of Selectmen  

 

 Article 15.  To see if the Town will vote to amend the Stoneham Town Code, Chapter 2 

Administration by adding an Article XIII, re-establishing by bylaw the Water and Sewer Review Board, 

including, but not limited to, the composition and manner of appointment of the board; the length of 

term(s) for board members; the duties, responsibilities and authority of the board and its members; and 

any other relevant provisions related thereto, or do anything in relation thereto. 

 

Board of Selectmen  



 11 

 

 Article 16.  To see if the Town will vote to amend the Stoneham Town Code, by adding a new 

Section(s) after Section 13-16 of the Code or otherwise adding a new Article, authorizing and regulating 

(including but not limited to any prohibitions, restrictions, conditions, fines and penalties) mobile food 

trucks, vehicles and/or carts and mobile food vendors on Town of Stoneham public rights of way and 

certain other Town property contingent upon and subject to the Board of Selectmen thereafter 

promulgating regulations further authorizing and regulating said mobile food trucks, vehicles and/or carts 

and mobile food vendors, or do anything in relation thereto. 

 

Board of Selectmen  

 

 Article 17. To see if the Town will vote to amend Article No. 9 of the October 2012 Special 

Town Meeting by appropriating a sum of One Million Three Hundred Thousand Dollars ($1,300,000) to 

purchase or refurbish a Fire Ladder Truck with associated equipment and the Town Treasurer, with the 

approval of the Board of Selectmen, be authorized to sell from time to time, as the occasion requires, 

town notes, bonds, or other evidence of indebtedness in an amount not to exceed One Million Three 

Hundred Thousand Dollars ($1,300,000) in accordance with Chapter 44, Section 7(1) of the 

Massachusetts General Laws and any other applicable laws. 

 

        Stoneham Fire Department  

 

Article 18. To see if the Town will vote to transfer Four Hundred Fifteen Thousand Sixty-One 

Dollars and Seventy-Five Cents ($415,061.75) from available funds or surplus revenue for the purpose of 

funding the Fiscal Year 2014 Snow & Ice Deficit of Four Hundred Fifteen Thousand Sixty-One Dollars 

and Seventy-Five Cents ($415,061.75), or do anything in relation thereto. 

 

Board of Selectmen  

 

Article 19. To see if the Town will vote to transfer One Hundred Eighty Thousand Dollars 

($180,000) from the special article that was approved under Article No. 21 of the October 21, 2013 

Special Town Meeting and One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000) from Surplus Revenue for a total 

of Two Hundred Eighty Thousand Dollars ($280,000) into the Special Fund for the Collection and 

Disposal of Trash (Fund #4009) that was authorized by the State under Chapter 100 of the Acts of 2014, 

or do anything in relation thereto. 

 

Board of Selectmen  

 

 Article 20. To see if the Town will vote to transfer the remaining balance of Forty-One 

Thousand Three Hundred Forty-Seven ($41,347) from the special article approved under Article No. 9 of 

the October 21, 2013 Special Town Meeting into the Special Fund for Railroad Right of Way Proceeds 

(Fund #4012) that was authorized by the State under Chapter 102 of the Acts of 2014, or do anything in 

relation thereto. 

 

Board of Selectmen  



 12 

 

 Article 21. To see if the Town will vote to amend the amount to be raised and appropriated 

under Article No. 21 of the May 5 & 8, 2014 Annual Town Meeting and adjust the Fiscal Year 2015 

departmental budgets and funding sources (as described in Exhibit A), or to do anything in relation 

thereto. 

 

Board of Selectmen  

 

 Article 22.  To see if the Town will vote to transfer a sum of money from available funds or 

surplus revenue to pay prior year invoices, or do anything in relation thereto.      

 

Board of Selectmen  

 

 Article 23. To see if the Town will vote to appropriate $486,167 to be received by the Town 

from the Commonwealth of Massachusetts Chapter 90 local transportation aid funding for fiscal year 

2015 for the purpose of continuing the permanent construction program on public ways within the Town 

or other eligible municipal projects and authorize the Town Administrator to make such expenditure, or 

do anything in relation thereto. 

 

Board of Selectmen  

 

 Article 24. To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate a sum of money to implement 

certain rehabilitation and construction projects on the Town’s sanitary sewer system under Phase 9 of the 

Massachusetts Water Resources Authority Assistance Program and the Town Treasurer, with the approval 

of the Board of Selectmen, be authorized to sell from time to time, as the occasion requires, town notes, 

bonds, or other evidence of indebtedness in the amount not to exceed $814,000 in accordance with 

Chapter 44, Section 7 (1) of the Massachusetts General Laws and further to accept any grants or gifts for 

those projects or do anything in relation thereto. 

 

Board of Selectmen  

 

 Article 25. To see if the Town will raise and appropriate, transfer from available funds, or 

borrow $100,000 to defray the cost of performing a drainage study in the Franklin Street and Spencer 

Street areas and other areas as needed or do anything in relation thereto. 

 

        Board of Selectmen 

 

 Article 26. To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate or transfer from available 

funds $25,000 for the purpose of embellishing Lindenwood Cemetery by hiring part-time help, 

purchasing equipment, or do anything in relation thereto. 

 

       Board of Selectmen 

 



 13 

 Article 27. To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate or transfer from available 

funds, or borrow, a sum of money for various capital purchases, or to do anything in relation thereto. 

 

       Board of Selectmen 

 

Article 28. To see if the Town will vote to transfer a sum of money from available funds or 

Surplus Revenue into the Stabilization Fund, or do anything in relation thereto. 

 

       Board of Selectmen 

 

 Article 29. To see if the Town will vote to transfer a sum of money from available funds or 

Surplus Revenue into the Capital Stabilization Fund, or do anything in relation thereto. 

 

        Board of Selectmen 

 

 Article 30. To see if the Town will vote to amend the amount to be raised and appropriated 

under Article No. 21 of the May 5 & 8, 2014 Annual Town Meeting by increasing the Fiscal Year 2015 

Council on Aging Personnel Budget by $18,824, or do anything in relation thereto. 

 

        Stoneham Council on Aging 



 14 

And you are directed to serve this Warrant by posting attested copies in at least ten (10) public places in 

the Town fourteen (14) days at least before the time for holding said meeting and by causing an attested 

copy to be published in some newspaper in the town, the publication to be not less than three (3) days 

before said meeting. 

 

Hereof fail not and make due return of this Warrant with your doings thereon to the Town Clerk at the 

time and place aforesaid. 

 

Given unto our hands this 7th day of October in the year of our Lord two thousand fourteen. 

 

 

       Board of Selectmen  

 

 

            

       Thomas Boussy, Chairman 

 

 

            

       John F. DePinto, Vice Chairman 

 

 

            

       Ann Marie O’Neill 

 

 

            

       Robert W. Sweeney  

 

 

            

       Frank Vallarelli 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Pursuant to the within warrant I have notified and warned the inhabitants of the Town of Stoneham qualified to vote in 

elections and Town affairs of the within meeting by posting attested copies of the said Warrant in at least ten (10) public places 

in the Town on October 13, 2014 and by publishing duly attested copy of said Warrant in the Stoneham Independent on 

October 15, 2014. 

 

A true copy.  Attest:        

      Constable of Stoneham 



Stoneham Board of Selectmen – Minutes of Meeting of October 7, 2014 

Chairman Thomas Boussy called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  Also present were Selectman 

John F. DePinto, Selectwoman Ann Marie O’Neill, Selectman Robert W. Sweeney, Selectman 

Frank Vallarelli and Town Administrator David Ragucci.  Town Counsel William H. Solomon 

arrived at 7:35 p.m.   

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Site Plan Hearing/Manison Street/Cicatelli 
Selectman DePinto read the Notice of Hearing.  Attorney Steven Cicatelli was present to 

represent Adam Road Business Center LLC et al to approve the site plan to construct (3) 

commercial buildings.  Two (2) buildings comprised of eleven contractors’ garages and one (1) 

unit fronting on Adam Road shown on proposed construction garage, with outdoor storage, on the 

property located at 21 Manison Street, Stoneham, MA, on land owned by Adam Road Business 

Center LLC et al, 405 Waltham Street, #401, Lexington, MA, in accordance with Section 4.7 and 

4.7.3 of Chapter 15 of the Stoneham Zoning By-Law.  Chairman Boussy shows the location being 

discussed. Selectwoman O’Neill asks about the appearance and making sure it is appealing where 

this location is what you see when you are entering Stoneham.  Selectman Sweeney asks how big 

the units are.  The developer states they are 1500 square feet units with one bathroom per unit and 

they are working to make this a green project.  Selectmen DePinto read Department 

Recommendations – Attorney Steven Cicatelli agrees with all DPW Engineering, Police 

Department, Board of Health, Fire Department and Inspectional Services. Chairman Boussy 

opens to public comment.  Selectman Sweeney made a motion to approve the site plan with two 

years to complete the project, seconded by Selectman DePinto.  A roll call vote was taken. 

      Voting in Favor: 

        Selectman DePinto 

        Selectwoman O’Neill 

        Selectman Sweeney 

        Selectman Vallarelli 

        Chairman Boussy 

Motion was unanimously voted (5-0). 

 

Police Department Update/Chief McIntyre 

Chief McIntyre was present to give an update on the Police Department.  Chief McIntyre 

discusses staffing levels which is currently at 36 officers from 41 officers in 1999 and where he 

would like to see his staffing be in the coming years.  Chief McIntyre compares data on the event 

calls from last year to this year which all have increased.  Chief McIntyre discusses grants that the 

Police Department receives.  Chief McIntyre informs that Board on the important events that 

have occurred over the past year.  Chairman Boussy would like to discuss the process of filling 

empty positions.  Selectwoman O’Neill asks how much he needs to put someone in the academy.  

Chief McIntyre states $25,000.00 per applicant.  Mr. Ragucci is looking into shifting money at 

this town meeting.  Mr. Ragucci states money may be able to be taken from unclassified account 

and IT budget combined.   

 

CIC Grant Discussion/Ann Marie O’Neill 
Selectwoman O’Neill discusses through the Drug & Alcohol Coalition they would like to apply 

for the 2015 Community Innovation Challenge Grant and would like the Board of Selectmen to 

support and sign tonight.  Mrs. O’Neill explains this would target kids at risk and kids currently 

going through substance abuse issues.  She states that we have no service for our teen population.  

Mrs. O’Neill states the Substance Abuse Coalition reached out to their counterparts.  She explains 

this grant would be to renovate a locker room space at the Boys & Girls Club to attract teens with 

job fairs, homework and mentoring.  Gerry DeViller from the Boys & Girls Club states it’s 

approximately $295,000.00 for both facilities and approximately $200,000.00 being for 

Stoneham.  Mr. DeViller states serving teens from the ages of 13-18 is something they have been 

looking to do.  Selectman Sweeney made a motion to endorse this, seconded by Selectman 

DePinto.  A roll call vote was taken.   



October 7, 2014 (2) 

 

Voting in Favor: 

        Selectman DePinto 

        Selectwoman O’Neill 

        Selectman Sweeney 

        Selectman Vallarelli 

        Chairman Boussy 

Motion was unanimously voted (5-0). 

 

Rick Amato/Sweeney 
Selectwoman O’Neill made a motion to move this to the end of the meeting.  There was no 

second and Selectman Vallarelli states he would like to hear it now.  Rick Amato speaks on the 

rumors going around.   

 

Public Hearing/Approve Grant of Location/6 Bow Street/National Grid 

Selectman DePinto read the Notice to Abutters regarding the petition of National Grid for 

locations of mains as hereinafter described for the transmission and distribution of gas in and 

under the following public streets, lanes, highways, and places of Town of Stoneham 

substantially as described in the petition dated 9/15/2014, attached hereto made a part hereof, and 

of the pipes, valves, governors, manholes and other structures, fixtures and appurtenances 

designed or intended to protect or operate said mains and accomplish the objects of said 

Company;   and the digging up and opening the ground to lay or place same:  Extend Gas Main 

135’ on Bow Street to serve #6.  Mr. Sinclair owner of 6 Bow Street spoke on what he is 

requesting from National Grid.  The abutters spoke on their concerns with there being ledge and 

that drilling will cause damage to their homes.  Selectman Sweeney made a motion to table this 

item until we hear from National Grid, seconded by Selectwoman O’Neill.  A roll call vote was 

taken.  

Voting in Favor: 

        Selectman DePinto 

        Selectwoman O’Neill 

        Selectman Sweeney 

        Selectman Vallarelli 

        Chairman Boussy 

Motion was unanimously voted (5-0).  

 

Selectman Vallarelli recuses himself from Agenda item#7 and leaves the room. 

 

Public Hearing/Approve Grant of Location/San Jose Terrace/National Grid 

Selectwoman O’Neill read the Notice to Abutters regarding the petition of National Grid for 

locations of mains as hereinafter described for the transmission and distribution of gas in and 

under the following public streets, lanes, highways, and places of Town of Stoneham 

substantially as described in the petition dated 10/02/2014, attached hereto made a part hereof, 

and of the pipes, valves, governors, manholes and other structures, fixtures and appurtenances 

designed or intended to protect or operate said mains and accomplish the objects of said 

Company;   and the digging up and opening the ground to lay or place same:  Extend Gas Main 

70 feet on San Jose Terrace to serve #4.  Paulette Gerry, 4 San Jose Terrace explains that she is 

looking for National Grid to extend the gas main to provide gas service to her home.  Chairman 

Boussy opens to public.  There was no comment.  Selectman DePinto made a motion to approve 

the Grant of Location, seconded by Selectman Sweeney.  A roll call vote was taken.   

Voting in Favor: 

        Selectman DePinto 

        Selectwoman O’Neill 

        Selectman Sweeney 

        Selectman Vallarelli 

        Chairman Boussy 



October 7, 2014 (3) 

 

Motion was unanimously voted (5-0).  

 

Discussion on Grant of Location guidelines for utility companies 
Director of Public Works Robert Grover explains that there is no policy for gas main 

installation/extensions.  He states that there are no updated gas line plans for the Town.  

Selectwoman O’Neill made a motion to authorize Robert Grover to request updated plans from 

all the utility companies, seconded by Selectman DePinto and unanimously voted (5-0).  The 

Board of Selectmen would like to require all gas main installation/gas main extensions projects to 

apply for a Grant of Location.   

 

Fallon Road Design Discussion/Houghton 

Attorney Charles Houghton was present representing Fairfield Residential.  He states that Kevin 

Mealy from Fairfield Residential will give the update.  Mr. Mealy states that there are two main 

areas they have been focusing on the last few months.  He states they have made process with 

Conservation Commission.  They met last Thursday and agreed they would get all their 

consultants together to work a few remaining issues.  The next issue would be the time spent with 

government agencies on the onsite traffic mitigation.  Mr. Mealy hands out a map and discusses h 

the change that was made.  Mr. Mealy states they are hoping to file for building permits by the 

end of the year.  He states they are looking at a demolition to begin possibly Fall early Winter and 

they are looking at possibly March or April to start with site work.   

 

Accept Warrant Articles as numbered for Annual October Town Meeting 
Mr. Ragucci states they have met with most the interested parties regarding the easement in 

regards to the Bike Path.   He states that Attorney Solomon, Outside Council, Anthony Wilson 

and himself rewrote Article #10.  This new article will let the plans be updated/changed and filed 

at the Town Clerks office as changes are made.  This gives more information to the public.  Mr. 

Ragucci states that he was told the construction of the bike path is due to start in the spring of 

2016.  Chairman Boussy opens this discussion up to the public.  Kathleen Sullivan, Spring Street, 

Attorney Brian Gallardo for Dale Halchak spoke.  George Seibold, 1 Toms Way, Raymie Parker, 

Bonard Road and Attorney Charles Houghton all had questions and spoke on the issue.  Anthony 

Wilson from the Bikeway Committee answered questions and gave a brief presentation of the 

areas being affected.  Chairman Thomas Boussy passed the gavel to Selectman John DePinto.  

Selectwoman Ann Marie O’Neill made a motion to accept the new article as #10, seconded by 

Selectman Boussy and unanimously voted (5-0).  Selectman DePinto made a motion to accept 

warrant articles as numbered for Annual October Town Meeting, seconded by Selectman 

Vallarelli and unanimously voted (5-0). 

 

Sign Warrant for Annual October Town Meeting 
Selectman DePinto made a motion to sign warrant for Annual October Town Meeting, seconded 

by Selectman Sweeney and unanimously voted (5-0). 

 

Sign State Election Warrant 
Selectman DePinto made a motion to sign state election warrant for November 4, 2014, seconded 

by Selectman Sweeney and unanimously voted (5-0). 

 

Common Street Parking/Disability Committee 
Sue Coughlin Chairwoman on the Disability Committee is asking the Selectman to approve a 

vote that was taken by the Disability Committee to provide a van accessible space on Church 

Street and transfer up to $5,000.00 to Public Works to make this spot compliant.  She states that 

this spot is not complaint currently.  Selectman DePinto made a motion to approve this transfer of 

up to $5,000.00 to Public Works, seconded by Selectman Sweeney and unanimously voted (5-

0). 

 

 



        October 7, 2014 (4) 

 

Liquor Licensing Authority 

Selectman DePinto moved to go into Liquor Licensing Authority and return as the Board of 

Selectman, seconded by Selectwoman O’Neill. 

      Voting in Favor: 

 

Selectman DePinto 

        Selectwoman O’Neill 

        Selectman Sweeney 

        Selectman Vallarelli 

        Chairman Boussy 

Motion was unanimously voted (5-0).  

 

Meeting recessed at 9:25 p.m. to go into Liquor Licensing Authority. 

Meeting reconvened at 9:29 p.m.  

 

Food Truck Regulations 
Attorney Solomon requests this be continued to the next meeting on October 21, 2014. 

 

Approve Minutes 
Selectman DePinto made motion to approve minutes of September 23, 2014, seconded by 

Selectman Vallarelli and unanimously voted (3-0-1).  Selectman Vallarelli abstained.  .  

 

Approve One Day Change of Time/Boys & Girls Club 

Selectman DePinto made a motion to approve the one day change of time for the Boys & Girls 

Club on Sunday, February 1, 2015 from 12:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m., seconded by Selectman 

Sweeney and unanimously voted (5-0). 

 

Approve Date for Town Hall Holiday Party 
Selectman Sweeney made a motion to approve the Town Hall Holiday Party to be held on 

December 16, 2014, seconded by Selectman DePinto and unanimously voted (5-0). 

 

Approve BOH request to Stockwell 
Selectman Sweeney made a motion to approve Board of Health request to Stockwell, seconded 

by Selectman DePinto and unanimously voted (5-0). 

 

Appoint Election Officers 

Selectman DePinto made a motion to approve Gordon Perks, 10 Seward Road as Clerk, Carol 

Covill, 53 Elm Street as Deputy Clerk, Therese DiBlasi, 5 Danby Road as Inspector and Robert 

T. Sullivan, 56 Pine Street, #2 as Deputy Inspector, seconded by Selectman Sweeney and 

unanimously voted (5-0). 
 

Accept Land 

Selectman DePinto made a motion to look into this with proper Departments and Committees and 

come back with a recommendation for May Town Meeting, seconded by Selectman Vallarelli 

and unanimously voted (5-0). 
 

Town Administrator 
Mr. Ragucci states that the downtown vision meeting held on October 1st was an incredible 

success.  Mr. Ragucci states he met with Woburn regarding the closing of the gelatin in 2016.  He 

states to the Gelatin that it is extremely important they let him know exactly when they are 

closing due to the impact it will have on the MWRA rate payers.  There will be quarterly meeting 

on the closing.  Selectwoman O’Neill asked Mr. Ragucci if he looked into the sewer relief grant 

she had sent him.  He stated that grant money is not something the town can apply for the MWRA 

uses that money to offset charges.   



 

October 7, 2014 (5) 

 

Miscellaneous Correspondence 

Chairman Boussy states there will be a Pumpkin Carving Event in the Common and he would 

request the support of the Board on October 25th.  The Chamber of Commerce, Stoneham TV and 

Stoneham Theatre are participants in this event. Selectman DePinto made a motion to support the 

event, seconded by Selectwoman O’Neill and unanimously voted (5-0).  Chairman Boussy is 

meeting with the Chamber of Commerce to work on the details of the event.  Chairman Boussy 

states what he is calling the Downtown Challenge which will consist of 5 groups of 10 which is 

make reservations at 5 different restaurants in the square area and then go to the Adams Family 

Show at Stoneham Theater.  Selectman DePinto states that on October Sat 25th from 2:00 p.m. to 

4:00 p.m. at Stoneham High School they will be opening a time capsule that buried in 1953 at the 

old High School/Middle School.  Selectman DePinto requests the Board present a proclamation 

for that day.  Selectwoman O’Neill made a motion to present the proclamation, seconded by 

Selectman DePinto and unanimously voted (5-0).  Selectwoman O’Neill would like to recognize 

a donation to the Beautification Fund from the Mary Lou and John Bracciotti.  Selectwoman 

O’Neill states that on October 26th there will be a Vigil from 6:30pm to 8pm in the Common.  

This will be a vigil for people in recovery and people on their way to recovery.  This event will be 

designated as Red Ribbon Week which is a national movement.   

 

Selectman DePinto adjourned, seconded by Selectwoman O’Neill and unanimously voted (5-0). 

 

Meeting adjourned at 9:55 p.m. 

    

      Respectfully submitted, 

      Erin Sinclair 


	#4 Public Hearing Grant of Location Wright Street
	Public Hearing Grant of Location Wright Street
	DOC100814-10082014121752

	#5 Public Hearing Grant of Location Bow Street National Grid
	doc00513820141015115608
	Pages from Bow Street

	#8 Sign Proclamation History Day
	#9 Sign Proclamation Red Ribbon Week
	#11 Warrant Article Recommendations
	#12 Minutes 14 10 7

